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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 37% (Thirty Seventh) Annual General Meeting of the
Equity Shareholders (Members) of WHITEHALL COMMERCIAL COMPANY
LIMITED will be held on Friday, September 29%, 2023 at 3.00 p.m. at the Registered office
of the Company located at O-402, 4™ Floor Plot No.389, Palai Ratan House, Sankara
Mattham Road, Kings Circle, Matunga, Mumbai-400019, Maharashtra, to transact the

following business:
ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 315t March 2023 and

2.

the statement of Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement for the year
ended on that date along with the Reports of Directors” and Auditors” thereon

To appoint Mrs. Rashmi D. Desai (DIN: 07854787), who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3. Re-appointment of Mr. Rohit P. Shah (DIN:00217271) as Whole-time Director of the

Company:

To consider and, if thought fit to pass, with or without modification(s), the
following resolutions as Special Resolution

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198 and 203
read with Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”), the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 and applicable Regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactments thereof, for the time being
in force) and the Article of Association of the Company and such other provisions as
may be applicable and based on the recommendation of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and approval by the Board, the consent of the Members of
the Company be and is hereby accorded to re-appointment of Mr. Rohit P. Shah
(DIN-00217271), as the Whole-time Director of the Company, for a further period of 5
(Five) years commencing from 30% September, 2023 without payment of any
remuneration on the terms and conditions as set out in the Explanatory Statement
annexed to the Notice convening the 37t Annual General Meeting, with the liberty to
the Board to alter and vary the terms and conditions of the said re-appointment in
such manner as may be agreed between the Board and Mr. Rohit P. Shah during the
period of his appointment within the overall ceiling as mentioned under the Act;



RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and Company secretary of the
Company be and are hereby authorized severally to do all acts, deeds and things and
execute all such documents, instruments and writings as may be necessary, desirable
or expedient for the aforesaid purpose, including filing of relevant forms with the
Office of the Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder.”

Place: Mumbai For and on behalf of the Board
Date: September 06, 2023

Sd/-
Registered Office: SHRUTI S. KULKARNI
Flat No. O-402,4t" Floor Plot No.389, COMPANY SECRETARY
Palai Ratan House, Sankara Mattham Road, ACS NO.24740

Kings Circle, Matunga, Mumbai-400019

NOTES:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT
A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND A PROXY
NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. PROXIES, IN ORDER TO BE
EFFECTIVE, SHOULD BE COMPLETED, STAMPED AND SIGNED AND MUST
BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LESS
THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING.

A PERSON CAN ACT AS A PROXY ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT
EXCEEDING FIFTY AND HOLDING IN THE AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAN
TEN PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY
CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS. A MEMBER HOLDING MORE THAN TEN
PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING
VOTING RIGHTS MAY APPOINT A SINGLE PERSON AS PROXY AND SUCH
PERSON SHALL NOT ACT AS A PROXY FOR ANY OTHER PERSON OR
SHAREHOLDER.

2. Corporate Members are requested to send a duly certified true copy of the Board

Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote at the Meeting.

3. Any member proposing to seek any clarification on the accounts is requested to
send the queries to the Company at its registered office at least seven days prior
to the date of Annual General Meeting to enable the management to compile the

relevant information to reply the same in the meeting.



10.

A Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, relating to the
Special Business to be transacted at the Meeting is annexed hereto.

The route map for the venue of the Annual General Meeting is attached herewith

for your reference.

The Register of Directors’ and Key Managerial Personnel and their Shareholding
maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be available for

inspection by the members at the Annual General Meeting.

Members are requested to bring their copy of Annual Report and attendance slip
to the meeting. Members are requested to hand over the Attendance Slip, duly
filled in and signed in accordance with their specimen signature(s) registered
with the Company for admission to the AGM hall. Members who hold shares in
dematerialized form are requested to bring their Client ID and DP ID Numbers

for identification.

Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Statement,
are open for inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the Company
on all working days, except Saturdays, during business hours up to the date of
the Meeting.

Members who would like to receive notices, letters, annual reports, documents
and any other correspondence by electronic mode are requested to register their
email addresses and changes therein, from time to time, with Company’s
Registrar and Transfer Agent i.e. M/s. Bigshare Services Pvt Ltd. in respect of
shares held in physical form. Shareholders holding shares in physical form can

send their email address for registration to whitehall@yahoo.com writing the

Folio Number and Name of the Company.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 101 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 18 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules,2014,
this Notice and the Annual Report of the Company for the Financial Year 2022-23
are being sent by e-mail to those Members who have registered their e-mail
address with the Company and/ or its Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (in
respect of shares held in physical form) or with their Depository Participants
(DPs) (in respect of shares held in electronic form) and made available to the
Company by CDSL. For Members who have not registered their e-mail address,
physical copies of the Notice and the Annual Report for 2022-23 is being sent
through the permitted mode.



11. The company is providing facility for voting by electronic means and the

business may be transacted through e-voting.

12. The facility for voting through ballot or polling paper shall be made available at
the meeting and the members attending the meeting who have not already cast

their votes by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at the meeting.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS VOTING ELECTRONICALLY
ARE AS UNDER:

The remote e-voting period begins on Tuesday, September 26®, 2023 at 9.00 am and
ends on Thursday, September 28%, 2023 at 5.00 pm. During this period members of
the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on
the cut-off date i.e. Friday, September 2274, 2023, may cast their vote by remote e-
voting. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.
Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the member, the member shall not be allowed
to change it subsequently.

In terms of the provisions of Section 107 of the Companies Act, 2013, since the
resolutions as set out in this Notice are being conducted through e-voting or physical
Ballot, the said resolutions will not be decided on a show of hands at the AGM. The
voting right of all shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid up
equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date i.e. Friday, September
22nd, 2023.

Voting through electronic means

I. In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013,
Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014
as substituted by the Companies (Management and Administration)
Amendment Rules, 2015 (“Amended Rules 2015") and Regulation 44 of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, and Secretarial Standards on General Meetings (55-2) issued by the
Company Secretaries of India, the Company is pleased to provide its
members facility to exercise their right to vote on resolutions proposed to
be considered at the 37% Annual General Meeting by electronic means and
the business may be transacted through e-voting Services. The facility of
casting the votes by the members using an electronic voting system from
a place other than venue of the AGM) (“remote e-voting”) will be
provided by Central Depository Services Limited (CDSL).

II. The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be made available at the
AGM and the members attending the meeting who have not cast their
vote by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at the meeting
through ballot paper.



I1I.

Iv.

The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the
AGM may also attend the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote
again.

A person who is not a member as on the cut-off date should treat this
Notice for information purpose only

The process and manner for remote e-voting are as under:

A.In case a Member receives an email from CDSL [for members whose
email IDs are registered with the Company/Depository Participants(s)]:

(i) Open email and open PDF file viz; “remote e-voting.pdf” with
your Client ID or Folio No. as password. The said PDF file contains
your user ID and password/PIN for remote e-voting. Please note
that the password is an initial password.

(i) Launch internet browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evotingindia.com/

(iii) Click on Shareholder - Login

(iv) Put user ID and password as initial password/PIN noted in step (i)
above. Click Login.

(v) Password change menu appears. Change the password/PIN with
new password of your choice with minimum 8 digits/characters or
combination thereof. Note new password. It is strongly
recommended not to share your password with any other person
and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

(vi) Home page of remote e-voting opens. Click on remote e-voting;:
Active Voting Cycles.

(vii) Select “EVSN” of “Whitehall Commercial Company Limited”.
i.e. EVSN 230821016

(viii) Now you are ready for remote e-voting as Cast Vote page opens.

(ix) Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option and click on
“Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

(x) Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be
displayed.

(xi) Once you have voted on the resolution, you will not be allowed to
modify your vote.
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VIII.

IX.

(xii) Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI
etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the
relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with the
Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the
Custodian and the attested specimen signature of the duly
authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the
Scrutinizer through e-mail to (cspratikmshah@gmail.com) with a
copy marked to helpdesk.evoting@cdsl.com.

B. In case a Member receives physical copy of the Notice of AGM [for

members whose email IDs are not registered with the
Company/Depository Participants(s) or requesting physical copy]:

(i) Initial password is provided as below/at the bottom of the
Attendance Slip for the AGM:

EVSN (Remote e-voting Event Number) USER ID
PASSWORD/PIN

(ii) Please follow all steps from Sl. No. (ii) to SI. No. (xii) above, to
cast vote.

In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions
(FAQs) for Members and remote e-voting user manual for Members
available at the downloads section of www.evotingindia.com or call
on toll free no.: 1800-225-533.

If you are already registered with CDSL for remote e-voting then you
can use your existing user ID and password/PIN for casting your vote.

You can also update your mobile number and e-mail Id in the user
profile details of the folio which may be used for sending future
communication(s).

Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and become
member of the Company after dispatch of the notice and holding
shares as of the cut-off date i.e. Friday, September 2274 , 2023, may
obtain the login ID and password by sending a request at
helpdesk.evoting@cdsl.com or Issuer/RTA.

However, if you are already registered with CDSL for remote e-voting
then you can use your existing user ID and password for casting your
vote. If you forgot your password, you can reset your password by
using “Forgot User Details/Password” option available on
www.evotingindia.com or contact CDSL at the following toll free no.:
1800-225-533.




X. A member may participate in the AGM even after exercising his right
to vote through remote e-voting but shall not be allowed to vote again
at the AGM.

XI. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the
register of beneficial owners maintained by the depositories as on the
cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-
voting as well as voting at the AGM through ballot paper.

XII. ~ Mr. Pratik M. Shah Company Secretary (Membership No. FCS 7431)
(CP No. 7401) has been appointed for as the Scrutinizer for providing
facility to the members of the Company to scrutinize the voting and
remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

XIII. The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the
resolutions on which voting is to be held, allow voting with the
assistance of scrutinizer, by use of “remote e-voting” or “Polling
Paper” for all those members who are present at the AGM but have
not cast their votes by availing the remote e-voting facility.

XIV.  The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the general
meeting, will first count the votes cast at the meeting and thereafter
unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at
least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and shall
make, not later than three days of the conclusion of the AGM, a
consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour or
against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in
writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the result of the
voting forthwith.

XV.  The Results shall be declared on or after the conclusion of the Annual
General Meeting of the Company. The Results declared alongwith the
Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the website of the Company i,e
https://www .whitehall.co.in/, and CDSL. The said results will also be
communicated to the Stock Exchanges on which the Company’s
equity shares are listed.

Place: Mumbai For and on behalf of the Board
Date: September 06, 2023

Sd/-
Registered Office: SHRUTI S. KULKARNI
Flat No. O-402,4t% Floor Plot No.389, COMPANY SECRETARY
Palai Ratan House, Sankara Mattham Road, ACS NO.24740

Kings Circle, Matunga, Mumbai-400019



ANNEXURE TO NOTICE
Explanatory Statement in respect of the Special business pursuant to
Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The following Statement sets out all material facts relating to the Special Business mentioned
in the Notice:

Item no. 3: Re-appointment of Mr. Rohit P. Shah (DIN: 00217271) as the Whole-time
Director of the Company

The Shareholders of the Company, at their Annual General Meeting held on 30th September,
2020, based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the
Board, had by way of Special Resolution approved the re-appointment of Mr. Rohit . Shah
as the Whole-time Director of the Company for a period of 3 years w.e.f. 30th September,
2020.

Accordingly, the current term of Mr. Shah, as the Whole-time Director, is coming to an end
on 29th September, 2023.

The Board of Directors, at their meeting held on 6th September, 2023 based on the
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, has approved, subject to
approval of Members, re-appointment of Mr. Rohit P. Shah as the Whole-time Director of
the Company for a further period of 5 years with effect from 30th September, 2023 without
payment of any remuneration.

Mr. Shah is having rich and vast hands-on experience of three decades in the industry. He
possesses requisite skills and knowledge relevant to the Company's business.

He is not disqualified from being appointed as Director in terms of Section 164 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Brief profile and other requisite details including Directorships and Committee positions of
Mr. Rohit P. Shah are given in Annexure —A.

The Board of Directors shall have the authority to alter and vary the terms and conditions of
the re-appointment of Mr. Rohit P. Shah in such manner as may be agreed between the
Board and Mr. Rohit P. Shah during the period of his appointment within the overall ceiling
as mentioned under the Act;

In view of the above, approval of members is being sought by way of a special resolution,
for the re-appointment of Mr. Rohit P. Shah as Whole-time Director of the Company for
another term of five years.

None of the Directors is in any way concerned or interested in the above re-appointment
except Mr. Rohit P. Shah and his relative if any.

The Board of Directors recommends Special Resolution set out at Item No. 3 for approval by
the Members of the Company.



Details of Directors seeking appointment / re-appointment at the Annual General
Meeting

[In pursuance of Regulation 36 (3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

Name of Director

Mr. Rohit P. Shah

DIN 00217271
Date of Birth 11/11/1958
Age 65 Years
Date of appointment on the | 16-04-1990
Board

Qualification BE- Civil

Expertise in specific functional
areas

Industrial Services.

Terms and conditions of

appointment

Mr. Rohit P. Shah is an executive director of
the Company and liable to retire by rotation.

Remuneration sought to be paid

Nil

Remuneration last drawn

Nil

Brief Biography

Mr. Rohit P. Shah is an executive director of
the Company.

List of other Companies in
which he holds Directorship as
on 31/03/2023

1.Sandhya Commercial Limited.

2.Praxys Project Engineers Limited.

3.Blackhill Investments Private Limited.

4 Vittakshem Insurance And Financial Services
Private Limited.

Chairperson/  member of
Committees of the Board of the
other companies in which she is
a Director (as on 31/03/2023)

Nil

No. of Meetings attended
during F.Y.: 2022-23

Relationship with other
Director/s, Manager and Key
Managerial Personnel

Equity Shares held in the

Company

76,050 Equity Shares




Route Map to the Venue of AGM: Registered office address: O-402 4% Floor Plot Mo, 389,
Palai Ratan Houss, Sankara Mattham Road, Kings Circle, Matunga, MMurmbai-400019,
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WHITEHALL COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED
Regd. Office: O-402 4™ Floor Plot N0.389, Palai Ratan House, Sankara Mattham Road,
Kings Circle, Matunga, Mumbai-400019
CIN: L51900MH1985PLC035669

FORM OF PROXY
Thirty Seventh Annual General Meeting, Friday, 29" September, 2023
[Pursuant to Section 105 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19 (3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the Member(s):
Registered address:
E-mail ID
Folio No./ Client ID* DP ID*
1/ We being the Member(s) of the Company holding _ shares, hereby appoint;
1.Name: E-mail
ID:
Address: )
Signature
or failing him / her
2.Name E-mail
. ID:
Address Signature :
or failing him / her
1.Name : E-mail
ID:

Address Signature :




as my/ our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) on my/our behalf at the Thirty Seventh
Annual General Meeting of the company, to be held on Friday, September 29t , 2023 at 3.00
pm. at O-402, 4™ Floor Plot No0.389, Palai Ratan House, Sankara Mattham Road, Kings
Circle, Matunga, Mumbai-400019 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such
resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolutions Vote (Optional
see Note 2)
For Against
ORDINARY BUSINESS
1 | To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31
March, 2023 and the statement of Profit and Loss Account and Cash
Flow Statement for the year ended on that date along with the
Reports of Directors’ and Auditors’ thereon
2 | To appoint Mrs. Rashmi D. Desai (DIN: 07854787), who retires
by rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-
appointment.
SPECIAL BUSINESS
3. | To Consider and Approve the re-appointment of Mr. Rohit P. Shah
as Whole-time Director of the Company
Please
affix
Revenue
Stamp

Signed this day of 2023.

Signature

* Applicable to Members holding shares in electronic form.

NOTES :
1. This form, in order to be effective, should be duly stamped, completed, signed and
deposited at the registered office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the

meeting.

2. It is optional to indicate your preference. If you leave the for/against column blank

against any or all resolutions, your proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as

he/she may deem appropriate.




WHITE HALL COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED

Regd. Office : 0-402, 4th Floor, Plot No. 389, Palai Ratan House, Sankara Mattham Road,
Kings Circle, Matunga, Mumbai - 400 019.
CIN NO. L51900MH1985PLC035669 | Email : whitehall@yahoo.com | Tel : 022-22020876 | Website : www.whitehall.co.in

BOARD’S REPORT

To
The Members,
WHITE HALL COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 37t Annual Report of the Company together
with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31+ March, 2023.

1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & RESULTS:

A. FINANCIAL RESULTS:
The Company's performance during the year ended 31 March,2023 as

compared to the previous financial year, is summarized below:

(Amount in Lakhs)
Particular For the financial For the financial
year ended year ended

31t March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Income 25.40 .
Less: Expenses 42.06 19.57
Profit/(Loss) before Exceptional & (16.66) (19.57)
Extraordinary Items and Tax.
Exceptional Items 30.00 .
Profit/(Loss) after Extraordinary (46.66) (19.57
Items and Tax
Extraordinary Items - .
Profit/(Loss) before Tax (46.66) (19.57)
Less: Provision for tax
Current Tax - .
Deferred Tax (3.01) (7.30
Profit after Tax (43.65) (12,27)

APPROPRIATION

Interim Dividend = .
Final Dividend = &
Tax on distribution of dividend - .
Transfer of General Reserve - -
Balance carried to Balance sheet (150.35) (106.71

B. OPERATIONS:

During the year under review, your Company has carried out Chemical Trading



WHITE HALL COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED

Regd. Office : 0-402, 4th Floor, Plot No. 389, Palai Ratan House, Sankara Mattham Road,
Kings Circle, Matunga, Mumbai - 400 019.
CIN NO. L51900MH1985PLC035669 | Email : whitehall@yahoo.com | Tel : 022-22020876 | Website : www.whitehall.co.in

During the year under review, your Company has carried out Chemical Trading
Business activities.

C. REPORT ON PERFORMANCE OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES OR JOINT
VENTURE COMPANIES:

During the year under review, the Company did not have Subsidiary, Associates or
Joint Venture Company

D. DIVIDEND:

Considering the loss incurred in the current financial year, your Directors have not
recommended any dividend for the financial year under review.

E. TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

In view of loss incurred during the year under review, the Board of Directors has not
recommended transfer of any amount to reserves.

F. REVISION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT:

There was no revision of the financial statements for the year under review.
G. DEPOSITS:

The Company has not accepted or renewed any amount falling within the purview of
provisions of Section 73 of the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014 during the year under review. Hence, the requirement
for furnishing of details of deposits which are in compliance with the Chapter V of the Act
is not required to be furnished.

H. DISCLOSURES UNDER SECTION 134(3)(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

Except as disclosed elsewhere in this report, no material changes and commitments
have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company and date of this
report which could affect the Company’s financial position.

I. DISCLOSURE OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

The Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements as designed and
implemented by the Company are adequate. During the year under review, no



WHITE HALL COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED

Regd. Office : 0-402, 4th Floor, Plot No. 389, Palai Ratan House, Sankara Mattham Road,
Kings Circle, Matunga, Mumbai - 400 019.
CIN NO. L51900MH1985PLC035669 | Email : whitehall@yahoo.com | Tel : 022-22020876 | Website : www.whitehall.co.in

material or serious observation has been received from the Auditors of the Company
for inefficiency or inadequacy of such controls.

J. DISCLOSURE OF ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNAL.:

No orders have been passed by any Regulator or Court or Tribunal which can have impact
on the going concern status and the Company’s operations in future.

K. PARTICULAR OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENT WITH RELATED
PARTIES:

All contracts/arrangement/transactions entered by the Company during the period
under review with related parties were in compliance with the applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) and SEBI Listing Regulations. Prior omnibus
approval of the Audit Committee is obtained for all related party transactions which
are foreseen and of repetitive nature. Pursuant to the said omnibus approval, details
of transaction entered into is also reviewed by the Audit Committee on a quarterly
basis.

All related party transactions entered during the financial year 2022-23 were in the
ordinary course of business, at arm’s length and not material under the Act and SEBI
Listing Regulations. None of the transactions required members’ prior approval under
the Act or SEBI Listing Regulations.

Details of transactions with related parties during financial year 2022-23 are provided
in the notes to the financial statements. There were no transaction requiring disclosure
under section 134(3)(h) of the Act. Hence, the prescribed Form AOC-2 does not form
a part of this Report.

L. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES, INVESTMENTS AND SECURITIES
UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

Details of investments made, loan advanced and guarantees given by the Company
are given in the notes to the Financial Statements.

M. DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 43(a)(ii) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

The Company has not issued any shares with differential rights and hence no
information as per provisions of Section 43(a) (ii) of the Act read with Rule 4(4) of the
Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished.

N. DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 54(1)(d) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:
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The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares during the year under review
and hence no information as per provisions of Section 54(1) (d) of the Act read with
Rule 8(13) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished.

O. DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 62(1)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

The Company has not issued any equity shares under Employees Stock Option
Scheme during the year under review and hence no information as per provisions of
Section 62(1) (b) of the Act read with Rule 12(9) of the Companies (Share Capital and
Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished.

P. DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 67(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

During the year under review, there were no instances of non-exercising of voting
rights in respect of shares purchased directly by employees under a scheme pursuant
to Section 67(3) of the Act read with Rule 16(4) of Companies (Share Capital and
Debentures) Rules, 2014 is furnished.

2, MATTERS REILATED TO DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Change in Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel during the year:

In the Financial Year 2022-2023 there was no change in directorship of the
Company.

In current, Mr. Rohit P. Shah, Mr.Nilesh Savant, Mr. Suresh Argade and Mrs. Rashmi
Desai are the directors to the Board of the company.

Pursuant to Section 2(51) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Rules framed there
under, the following persons have been designated as Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company:

1. Mr. Rohit P. Shah- Whole-time Director

2. Mrs. Shruti Kulkarni- Company Secretary & Chief Financial Officer

B. DECLARATIONS BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

The Company has received declarations form all the Independent Directors under
Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 confirming their independence vis-a-vis the
Company.
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3. DISCLOSURES RELATED TO BOARD, COMMITTEES AND POLICIES

A. BOARD MEETINGS:

The Board of Directors met Five times during the financial year ended 31 March, 2023
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made
thereunder.

The Date on which the Board of Directors met during the financial year under review
are as under;

26/05/2022
11/08/2022
05/09/2022
11/11/2022
13/02/2023

AN

B. AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS:
During the year, Four Audit Committee Meetings were convened and held.

The Date on which the members of Audit committee met during the financial year
under review are as under;

26/05/2022
11/08/2022
11/11/2022
13/02/2023

W

C. NOMINATION REMUNERATION COMMITTEE MEETINGS:
During the year, One Nomination Remuneration Committee Meetings were convened

and held.

The Date on which the members of Nomination Remuneration committee met during
the financial year under review are as under;

1. 11/08/2022

D. SEPARATE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS MEETING:
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During the year, One Separate Meeting of Independent Directors was convened and
held.

The Date on which the Independent directors met during the financial year under
review is as under;

1. 11/11/2022

E. DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

In terms of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, in relation to the audited
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31t March, 2023, the Board of
Directors hereby confirms that:

a. inthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b. such accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and the
Directors made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31t March,
2023 and of the loss of the Company for that year;

c. proper and sufficient care was taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d. the annual accounts of the Company have been prepared on a going concern basis;

e. internal financial controls have been laid down to be followed by the Company
and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating
effectively;

f. proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

F. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of Directors as constituted by the
Board of Directors of the Company in accordance with the requirements of Section 178
of the Act.

The composition of the committee is as under:
1. Mr. Suresh Argade, Chairman

2. Mr. Nilesh Savant, Director
3. Mrs. Rashmi Desai, Director
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The Board has in accordance with the provisions of sub-section (3) of Section 178 of
the Companies Act, 2013, formulated the policy setting out the criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a Director and policy relating to
remuneration for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees.

Major criteria defined in the policy framed for appointment of the Directors including
criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, Independence, etc. are as

under:

L. Selection of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

In case of Executive Directors and Key Managerial Personnel, the selection can be
made in either of the ways given below:

a. by way of recruitment from outside;

b. from within the Company hierarchy; or

c. Upon recommendation by the Chairman or other Directors.

The appointment may be made either to fill up a vacancy caused by retirement,
resignation, death or removal of an existing Executive Director or it may be a fresh
appointment.

In case of Non-Executive Directors, the selection can be made in either of the
ways given below:

a. By way of selection from the data bank of Independent Directors maintained by
the Government.
b. Upon recommendation by Chairman or other Directors.

IL. Qualifications, Experience and Positive Attributes Of Directors

a. While appointing a Director, it shall always be ensured that the candidate
possesses appropriate skills, experience and knowledge in one or more fields of
finance, law, management, sales, marketing, administration, research, corporate
governance, technical operations or other disciplines related to the Company’s
business.

b. In case of appointment as an Executive Director, the candidate must have the
relevant technical or professional qualifications and experience as are considered
necessary based on the job description of the position. In case no specific
qualification or experience is prescribed or thought necessary for the position
then while recommending the appointment, the job description to the Committee
shall be provided and along with justifications that the qualifications, experience
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and expertise of the recommended candidate are satisfactory for the relevant
appointment.

c. The Board, while making the appointment of a Director, shall also try to assess
from the information available and from the interaction with the candidate that
he is a fair achiever in his chosen field and that he is a person with integrity,
diligence and open mind.

I11. Independence of Directors:

While making appointment of directors, following principles shall be observed by the

Board, as far as practicable:

a. There shall be a proper mix of Executive and Non-Executive Directors and
Independent and non-independent directors on the Board. The Company shall
always be in compliance of the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act,
2013, as amended from time to time, in this regard.

b. There shall be a workable mix of directors drawn from various disciplines like
technical, finance, commercial, legal etc.

c. While appointing a director to fill in a casual vacancy caused by death, resignation
etc. of a director, an effort shall be made, as far as possible, to appoint such a person
in his place who has the relevant experience in the fields or disciplines in which
the outgoing director had with relevant expertise as requisite to Business of the
Company.

d. No preference on the basis of gender, religion or cast shall be given while
considering the appointment of directors.

While appointing independent directors, the criteria for the independent directors, as
laid down in Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 shall be followed.

G. AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The Audit Committee of Directors was constituted pursuant to the provisions of
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. The composition of the Audit Committee is
in conformity with the provisions of the said section.

The Audit Committee comprises of:
1. Mor. Nilesh Savant, Chairman
2. Mrs. Rashmi Desai, Director
3. Mr. Suresh Argade, Director

The scope and terms of reference of the Audit Committee have been amended in
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accordance with the Act.

During the year under review, the Board of Directors of the Company had accepted
all the recommendations of the Audit Committee.

H. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

As per section 178(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company is not required to
constitute Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

I. VIGIL MECHANISM POLICY FOR THE DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES:

The Board of Directors of the Company has, pursuant to the provisions of Section
177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings of
Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, framed “Vigil Mechanism Policy” for Directors and
employees of the Company to provide a mechanism which ensures adequate
safeguards to employees and Directors from any victimization on raising of concerns
of any violations of legal or regulatory requirements, incorrect or misrepresentation
of any, financial statements and reports, etc.

The employees of the Company have the right/option to report their
concern/grievance to the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Company is committed to adhere to the highest standards of ethical, moral and
legal conduct of business operations.

J. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

The Board of Directors of the Company has designed Risk Management Policy and
Guidelines to avoid events, situations or circumstances which may lead to negative
consequernces on the Company's businesses, and define a structured approach to
manage uncertainty and to make use of these in their decision making pertaining to
all business divisions and corporate functions. Key business risks and their mitigation
are considered in the annual/strategic business plans and in periodic management
reviews.

K. ANNUAL EVALUATION OF DIRECTORS, COMMITTEE AND BOARD:

Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board had prepared and sent,
through its Chairman, feedback forms for evaluation of the Board, Independent
Directors and the Chairman. The Independent Directors at their meeting considered
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and evaluated the Board’s performance, performance of the Chairman and other non-
independent Directors. The Board subsequently evaluated performance of the Board,
the Committees and Independent Directors; without participation of the concerned
Director.

As stipulated by the Code of Independent Directors under the Companies Act, 2013,
a separate meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company was held to review
the performance of Non-Independent Directors (including the Chairman) and the
Board as whole.

Performance evaluation of Independent Directors was conducted by the Board of
Directors, excluding the Director being evaluated. The criteria for performance
evaluation of Independent Directors laid down by the Nomination, Remuneration and
Compensation Committee is as below:

e Ethics and values,

¢ knowledge and proficiency,

o diligence,

¢ Behavioral traits and

e Efforts for personal development

Similarly, performance evaluation of the Chairman and Non — Independent Directors
was carried out by the Independent Directors.

L. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS:

Adequate internal control systems commensurate with the nature of the Company’s
business and size and complexity of its operations are in place have been operating
satisfactorily. Internal control systems comprising of policies and procedures are
designed to ensure reliability of financial reporting, timely feedback on achievement
of operational and strategic goals, compliance with policies, procedure, applicable
laws and regulations and that all assets and resources are acquired economically, used
efficiently and adequately protected.

M. DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND
OTHER DISCLOSURES AS PER RULE 5 OF COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT &
REMUNERATION) RULES, 2014:

None of the Directors was in receipt of remuneration during the year under review.

AUDITORS AND REPORTS
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The matters related to Auditors and their Reports are as under:

A. APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS:

The Equity Shareholders of the Company in their Thirty Fourth Annual General
Meeting held on 30% September, 2020 had accorded their approval pursuant to the
provisions of Sections 139 and other applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and
Rules made there under to appoint M/s MAPS & Company, Chartered Accountants
(FRN No. 118913W), as the Statutory Auditor of the Company for the period of five
years commencing from the conclusion of Thirty Fourth Annual General Meeting
until the conclusion of Thirty Ninth Annual General Meeting.

Any qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer in the Auditors’ Report
to the Members read alongwith notes to the accounts are self-explanatory, needs no
further clarification or explanation.

Pratik M. Shah, Company Secretaries, Membership No. FCS 7431) (CP No. 7401) has
been appointed as Secretarial Auditor of the Whitehall Commercial company Ltd. for
the financial year 2022-23.

Necessary resolution for appointment of the said Auditorsis included in the Notice of
AGM for seeking approval of members.

B. OBSERVATIONS OF STATUTORY AUDITORS ON ACCOUNTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2023:

The observations made by the Statutory Auditors in their report for the financial year
ended 31t March 2023 read with the explanatory notes therein are self-explanatory
and therefore, do not call for any further explanation or comments from the Board
under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013.

C. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2023:

As per the provisions of Section 204 read with Section 134(3) of the Companies Act,
2013, mandates the Company to obtain Secretarial Audit Report from Practicing
Company Secretary. Pratik M. Shah, Company Secretaries have been appointed to
issue Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year 2022-23.

Secretarial Audit Report issued by Pratik M. Shah, Company Secretaries in Form
MR-3 for the financial year 2022-23 forms part to this report. Pursuant to the Section
134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and with respect to the observation made by the
Secretarial Auditors of the Company on the compliance of Laws/Acts, the Board of
Directors states as under;
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I. Non appointment of Internal Auditor

Ma_nagement Response: The Company is in process of ta_ki_ng necessary steps to
comply with the above mention observation raised in the Secretarial Audit Report.

II. Company has generally complied with the Regulations of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 except Regulation 31(2) and Regulation 31(3). Further as per the
documentation produced before us for the Audit and the information provided to us
by the Promoters and its officers, we have observed that the shareholding of 99.92%
of the promoters are in dematerialized form and further the Promoters of the
Company have already initiated the process of dematerialization to convert its
physical shares into demat form.

Management Response: The Promoters of the Company have initiated the process of
dematerialization to convertits physical shares into demat form. At present 99.92% of
the total Promoter’s Shares are in demat form.

III. Company has placed the annual report on the website of the Company, however
due to oversight Company has missed out mentioning the web address of the website
as required to be provided under the Companies Act, 2013 in the Board Report of
Financial Year 2021-22.

Management Response:

The observation is self-explanatory.

D. FRAUD REPORTING:

During the year under review, there were no instances of material or serious fraud
falling under Rule 13(1) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2013, by
officers or employees reported by the Statutory Auditors of the Company during the
course of the audit conducted.

5. DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE 2016:

During the year under review, there was no application made or proceeding pending under
the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

6. DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN VALUATION AMOUNT ON ONE TIME
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SETTLEMENT AND VALUATION WHILE AVAILING LOAN FROM BANKS AND
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

During the year under review, there has been no one time settlement of Loans taken from
Banks and other financial Institution.

7. OTHER DISCLOSURES

Other disclosures as per provisions of Section 134 of the Act read with Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 are furnished as under:

A. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

In terms of Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12 of Companies
(Management And Administration) Rules,2014 the Annual Return of the Company is
available on the website of the Company at the link https://www.whitehall.co.in/annual
retur

B. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in respect of
conservation of energy and technology absorption have not been furnished considering
the nature of activities undertaken by the Company during the year under review.

During the year under review, the Company has neither earned nor used any foreign
exchange.

C. DISCLOSURE RELATED TO PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN
AT WORKPLACE:

The Directors further state that Pursuant to the provisions of Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, no case
pertaining to sexual harassment at workplace has been reported to Company during F.Y.
2022-23.

D. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

Pursuant to the Regulation 15 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, which is effective from 01 December, 2015, the
Company is not required to comply with provisions of Corporate Governance as its Paid
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up capital is less then Rs. 10 Crore and its net worth is also less than Rs. 25 Crore as on
31/03/2023.

E. ACCOUNTING POLICY:

Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) — IFRS Converged Standard. Your Company has
adopted Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) for the accounting periods beginning
on 15t April, 2022 pursuant to Ministry of Corporate Affairs Notification dated 16%
February, 2015 notifying the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015.

E. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT:

A detailed analysis of your Company’s performance is discussed in the Management
Discussion and Analysis Report, which forms part of this Annual Report.

8. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS AND APPRECIATION:

Your Directors take this opportunity to thank the customers, shareholders, suppliers,
bankers, business partners/associates, financial institutions and Central and State

Governments for their consistent support and encouragement to the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/- Sd/-

ROHIT P. SHAH SURESH T. ARGADE
WHOLETIME DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

DIN: 00217271 DIN: 07945594

Date: September 06%,2023
Place: Mumbai

Registered Office CIN: L51900MH1985PLC035669
0-402,4th Floor Plot No.389, Tel No.: 022-22020876

Palai Ratan House, Fax No.: 022-22020359

Sankara Mattham Road, Mail: whitehall@yahoo.com

Kings Circle,Matunga,
Mumbai-400019
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PRATIK M. SHAH B.com., Fc.s.

Company Secretaries (Peer Reviewed Unit)

MR-3
Secretarial Audit Report
For the Financial year ended 315 March, 2023
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

The Members,
Whitehall Commercial Company Limited

Books, documents, records, e-forms (forms) and returns, registers, minutes were not verified
physically and the same were made available in electronic mode and were verified on the
bases of the representations received and made by the management of the Company, its
officers, agents and authorised representatives for its accuracy and authenticity. Accordingly,
wherever, in the report, words such as “examined”, “review”, “verification” are being stated it
should be construed as examination, review, verification of electronic records. This report
should be read along with the Annexure attached to this report.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by WHITEHALL COMMERCIAL COMPANY
LIMITED (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner
that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorised representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has during the financial year ended
315t March, 2023, generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also
that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter

1. We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31%t March, 2023,
according to the provisions of:

i The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

ii. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

Off. Add:. D/12, Riddhi Avenue, OF. New Link Road, Chikuwadi, Borivali (West), Mumbai - 400 092
Oft. Tel. No.: 022 - 2898 3946 - Off. Cell: +91 - 91379 27410 « E-mail: cspratikmshah@gmail.com



ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made
thereunder;

iv. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

€) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015.

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants)
Regulations, 2018,

Provisions of the following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and

Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) were not applicable to the Company
under the financial year under report:-

i The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefit)
Regulation, 2014;

ii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

iii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2021; and

iv. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy Back of Securities) Regulations,
2018;

V. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021;

vi. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder;




We further report that:

Company is not required to comply with Regulation 15 of The Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as companies
paid up equity share capital is not exceeding Rs. 10 Crores and net worth not exceeding Rs.
25 Crores as on the last day of the previous financial year,

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted as per provisions of section
149(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking
and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting
and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

The majority of decisions are carried through which are captured and recorded as part of the
minutes.

Following observations were noticed during our Audit:

1. Company has generally regular in filing of e-Forms with the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs and complied all the provisions as per the Companies Act, 2013 except
following:

a) Company has not appointed Internal Auditor as per the provisions of Section 138 (1)
of the Companies Act, 2013.

b) Company has placed the web address in required documents of the Company under
the letter head and also placed the annual report on the website of the Company,
however due to oversight Company has missed out mentioning the web address of
the website as required to be provided under the Companies Act, 2013 in the Board
Report of Financial Year 2021-22.

2. Company has generally complied with Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of
Company Secretaries of India.

3. Company has generally complied with the Regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
except Regulation 31(2) and Regulation 31(3). Further as per the documentation
produced before us for the Audit and the information provided to us by the Promoters
and its officers, we have observed that the shareholding of 99.92% of the promoters
are in dematerialized form and further the Promoters of the Company have already

initiated the process of dematerialization to convert its physical shares into demat
form.




We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

RATIK M. SHAH
Company Secretaries
FCS No.: 7431
CP No.: 7401
PU No. 755/2020
UDIN: FO07431E000935897

Place: Mumbai
Date: 4™ September, 2023

Encl.: Annexure to Report



Place: Mumbai
Date: 4" September, 2023

ANNEXURE TO SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT ISSUED FOR FY 2022-23

The Members
Whitehall Commercial Company Limited

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain

reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial
records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of

Accounts of the company.

. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the

compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,

standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the
verification of procedures on test basis,

. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the

Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the company.

PRATIK M. SHAH

Company Secretaries

FCS No.: 7431; CP No.: 7401
PU No. 755/2020

UDIN: FO07431E000935897




PRATIK M. SHAH s.com., FC.s.

Company Secretaries (Peer Reviewed Unif)

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10) (i) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

The Members,
WHITEHALL COMMERCIAL COMPANY LTD

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received
from the Directors of Whitehall Commercial Company  Ltd having CIN
L51900MH1985PLC035669 and having its registered office at 0-402, Floor-4, Plot-389, Palai
Ratan House, Sankara Mattham Road, Kings Circle, Matunga, Mumbai 400 019, (hereinafter
referred to as ‘the Company’) and produced before us by the Company for the purpose of
issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub-
clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including
Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered
necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company and its officers, We hereby certify
that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year
ending on 31%t March, 2023 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or
continuing as Directors of Company by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of
Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authorities.

Sr. No. Name of Directors DIN

1 Rohit Prabhudas Shah 00217271
2 Rashmi Deepak Desai 07854787
3 Suresh Tukaram Argade 07945594
4 Nilesh Krishnarao Savant 09440936

Off. Add:. D/12, Riddhi Avenue, Off. New Link Road, Chikuwadi, Borivali (West), Mumbai - 400 092
Off. Tel. No.: 022 - 2898 3946 « Off. Cell: +91 - 91379 27410 « E-mail: cspratikmshah@gmail.com



Further ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is
the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

PRATIK M. SHAH

Company Secretaries

FCS No.: 7431; CP No.: 7401
Place: Mumbai : PU No. 755/2020

Date: 4 September, 2023 UDIN: FO07431E000936007
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!uﬂ:pgud&n! Auditer's Report

Ta,
The Members of Whitehall Commereial Company Limited

Report on the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opini
We have sudited the sccompanving Standalope Ind AS financial statements ofWhitehall
Commercial Company Limited(™the Compuny™) which compriscs the Balance Sheet as af
March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Lossand statement of changes o couity and cash
flowse for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone finaneial statements including a

summary ol signifieant accounting policies and olher explanatory information.

In our opinion and t the best of our information and according to the explanations given o us,
the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in
the manner so reguired and gmive & true and feir view in conformity with the accounting
principies genernlly accepied in India, of the st ot affairs of the Campany av =t hMarch 31

2023, and prefivloss, and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing {SAs) specificd unde
scction 143(100 of the Companies Act, 2013, Our responsibilities under those Siandards are
further deseribed in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standsione Fingncial
Staternents section of our report. We are ndependent of the Compiny i aceoidance with the
Code of Fihics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India wgether with the
cthical requirernents that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone financial statements under
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2617 and the Rules thersunder, and we have fulfilled owr

other cthical responsibilitics in accordance with these requirements ead the Code of Ethies,

We believe thar the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and apprepriaic (o provide

basis fur our-opinion
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Emphasis of Matter

In our opinion, there is no such matier which we need to emphasize in our Audit Report

wilitors’ repord

The Company's board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information
The other formation comprises the information included in the Board's Repord ineluding
Annexures to Hoard’s Repor, Business Responsibility Report but does nol include the

Standalone Ind AS Tinancial siatements and our auditor’s report thereon,

Our opinion on the Standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the ather information

and we do not exprese any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is
io read the other information and, in doing so. consider whether the other information s

materially inconsistent with the standalone Ind AS financial statemicnts or our knowledge

obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears o be materially misstated

If, hased on the work we have performed, we conclude that there 18 & material misstatement of

this other information, we are required o report that fact, We have nothing 10 report in this

regard,

& Financial Stare

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance,changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act, This responsibility also mcludes maintenance of adequate
meconnting records in accordance wilh the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of

the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities: selection amd

application of appropriate implememation and maintenance of aceounting policies; making
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maintenance of adequate infernal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevanti fo the preparation and
presentation of the Standzlone Ind AS financial siatement that pive a true and fmr view and are
free from materal misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or error,

In preparing the Standalone Ind AS fnancial statements, menagement is responsible for
assessing the Company's ability 1o continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related 0 going concem and using the poing concern basis of accoumnng unless

manapement either intends o lsquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic

alternative but to do so.

Thase Board of Directors are also respensible for overseeing the company's finandial reporting

Process.

Our objectives are to obinin reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Ind AS limancial
statements as 8 whole are free from material misstastement, whether due to fraud or crror, and o
issue an auditor’s repont that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is # high level of
agsurancobul is oot & guarantee that an aodit conducted in accordance with 545 will always
detect 2 material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud ar ervor and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone Ind AS

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs. we exercise professional judgment and mainigin

professivnal skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS Hnancal
staternents. whether due to fraud or error, design and perform sudit procedures responsive to
those rigks. and obiain sudit evidence that is sufficient and approprisie 1o provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting & material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from emor, as fraud may involve collusion. forgery. intentional
omissions, missepresentations, or the overnde of intemal control.

o Obtain an understunding of imernal control relevant to the audit in prder (o design aodi

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3){1
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Companies Act, 2013, we are not responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequaie internal financial controls svstem in ploce and the operating
effectiveness of such controls

s Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies uged and the readwnableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of managementi's use of the going concemn basis of
aceounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material unceriainty exisis
eelated to events or conditions that may cast sipmilicant doubt on the Company s ability o
continwe as 4 going concern. 1 we conclude that o material uncertainty exists, we ore required
to draw attention in our suditor's report to the related disclosures in the Siandalone Ind AS
firancial statements or, if sech disclosures are inadequate, to medify our opmon. Our
conciusions are based on the sudit evidence obtained up to the daté of our budiior's repon,
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company 10 c€ase o onlinue as a going

CONCErT.
o FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Ind AS Timancial

statements, including the disclosures. and whether the Standalone [nd AS finoncinl sisements

represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that schieves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, amoimg other marters, the
planmed scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any significant

deficiencies in internal contral that we identify during owr audit.

We also provide those charpad with governance with o statement that we have complisd with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, ond 1o communicate with them ali

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards, From the matters communicated with those charged with

governance, we delermine thosc matlers that were of most significance in the audit of the
Standalone Ind AS financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audil
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regelabion prechdes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine thai o
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse censequences of dmng so

would reasonably be expected 1o outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,
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Other Matters

There is no such other maiter which we need to be mention in our Audit Report.

n Other Legal and latory Requirements:
1. Companics (Auditor's Report) Order 2020, issued by Central Govemnment of Indra in terms
of sub section (11) of the Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 we give in Annexure a

slafement on the maners specified in paragraph 3 & 4 of the Order to the exienl possible.

(Annexure 1)

2. Asrequired by Scction 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledse and befief were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

4. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which 1o the best of
ourknowledpe and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit

b. In cur opinion, proper books of sccount as required by law have beon Rept by the
Company so Tar as it appears from our exammation of those books.

2. The Balance Sheet. the Statement of Profit and Loss{including Other Comprehensive
Ineome), the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of changes in equity deslt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of accounts.

d. In our opinion, the aforesmd standalone [nd AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

. O the basis of the written representations received from the directors us vn 31 March
20273 taken on record by the Board of Direclors. none of the directors is disqualified as
on 31" March 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act

f. With respect 1o the adequacy of the internal finanvial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer 1o our separate

Repart in Annexure 2.
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g With respect (o the ather matters 10 be included in the Auditor’s Reporn in accordance
with [ole 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, m our epinion and Lo
the best of our information and according 1o the explanations given 10 us:

¢ The Company does nol have any pending litipations which would impact ifs financisl
[ersiticn,

+ The Company did not have any long-term contracts including denivalive contragts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

« There has been no delay in transferring amounts. required to be transferred, o the

Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company,

For MAPS & Company

CA Prashant Kulkarni
Partner

Membership No. 106983
UDN:- 231 069838GYBPHIZST

Place: - Pune
Date: -27™ April 2023
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ANNEXURE 1 TO INDEPENDENT AUBITORS' REPORT

As per point 3 of Companics (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 di.25"Februar: 2020,
Referred to in Parsgraph 1 uader the licading of *Report on other legal & regulatory

& L]

Re: - Whitehall Commercial Company §imi

Propertv

lant &eguipment, and intangibl

te.

tedfor the F.Y., 2022-23

g} The Company does not have any Property, Plant & Equipment, and [ntangible usseis

snd hence our remarks with respect to maintensnce of record, physical verification,

title decds of immovable property, revaluition, elc. are ot attracted,
b} No proceedings have been initiated or peading against the company or holding any
bepami property under Aenami transactions (prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988} and

rules made there under. Henee, no disclosure of such details required

Inventory -

al The compeny does not heve any siock of raw malerials, work i progress, linished

goods, stores & spares and hence the question of proper maintenence of reconds of the

mventory and frequency of verfication does not arise.

b} The company has not been sanctioned working capital imits in excess of K 3 Crn

aggregate rom banks or ©1 on the basis of sccunty of current assets and nence the

question of guarterly returns or statemcnts fifed by the company with such banks or Fl

dAoss pot ares

Investments made. GudranteeSecurity gioyided, or Loans granted-
a) The compeny has not provided loans, or advances in the nature of loans, or swod

guarantee, or provided security to companias, firms, LLP, or any other par

b) As the Comprny his not provided loans, or sdvances in the nature of loans, or stood

guaraniee, of provided security lo compames, firms, LLP, or any other party, our

comments related to terms & conditions, schedule o repayment, overdue status, ete,

are nol attracted.
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4. s (o Directors, Investment, Guaranless & Securi n

a} Company has not granted any loans or given guarantees or provided any security in
eemmection with the loan — directly or indirectly - fo Directors or any other pérson in
whom Directors are inleresied in contravention of Section 185 of Companies Act
2013.

by Compaeny has not granted any loan or given guarantee or made investmen| or provided

sécurily in edmiravention of Szction 186 of Companiss Act 2013,

5. Deposits
a) The Company has not aceepted any deposits. Hence our comments on complisnes of

the directives of Reserve Bank of Indie, provisions of Sec.73 w0 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2003 & the rules framed thers under sre not
required.

b} The namre of contravention - not applicable.

¢} No order has been passed by Company Law Board, or Natonal Company Law
Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any ather Tribunal requiring any

comphance.

6. Cost records —

The Company is not required to maintain cost records pursuant to Section 148(1}) of the

Companies Act 2013.

7. Statutory dues -
a) According to the information & explanations given fo us, Company is regular in

depostting undisputed statulory dues including GST, Provident Fund, Fmployees'
State Insumance, Tncome-tax, Sales-tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Exeise Duty, VAT,

Cess and any other statutory dugs with appropriate authority.
b} No such undisputed ducs were outstanding as at the last day of financial vear for a

peried of more than six months from due date.

c) Mo such dues were outsianding on account of any dispute pending with any forum,

8 Pisclosures under Ineome tax —

Tax At lval.
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9. Repayment of loams--
a) The Company hins not defaulied in repayment of leans or other borrowings or in the

payment of interest thereon to any lender.

bl  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the hasis of our
amdit procedures. we report that the eonmpany has net been declared willul defaulter by
any bank or financial institation or government or any gevenment authonty”

¢} The term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained. Hence,
ol comment on amount of loan so diverted and the purpose for which it was used s
not reguired.

d) According w the information and explanations given 1o us, and the procedures

performed by us, and on an overnll exsmination of the financial statements of the
company, we report that no funds mised on short-term basig have been vsed Tor long-
term purposes by the company.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the fnancial statémenis of the company, we repori that the company
has not taken any funds from any entity or person on sccount of or 1o meel the
cbligations of its subsidiaries, associates, or joint ventures.

f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed
by us, we report that the company has not raised loans during the vear on the pledge of

securities held in its subsidiaries. joint ventures, or associate companies,

10 Utilization of IPO & focther public offer -

g} The Company has not raised funds by way of PO or any Pablic offer {including Debi
instrament). Hence, onr comment on application of funds for the purpose of which
those were rmised and details of any delays or defaults is not required.

b} The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or convertible debentures (fully, partially, o optionally convertible) durmg the year.
Hence our commenis on compliance of section 42 and 62 of Companies Act, 2013 and
utilization of funds for the purpess for which the funds were raised is not required.

11. Fraud -
al No fraud by the company or on the Compeny has been noticed or report

vear, Hence our ¢commenis an the nature of fraud and the amount mydise,

rejared,
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b) No report w's 143(12) of the Companies Act. 2013 has been filed in form AINT-4 as
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Andil and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the

Central Government.

¢} There were no whistle-blower complaints recerve during the year by the company,

MNidhi company —

The Company is not a Nidht Company & hence our comments related o Nidhi Compsny

are not atiracted.

Related partv transactions —

a) All transactions with the related partics are in comphiance with sections 177 and |88 of
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and
b} The details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as recuired by the

appheable accounting standards,

Internal audit -

In our opinion and based on our examination, the company does not have on inlernal audit

systern aned is not required to have on internnl audit system as per provisions of the

Companies Act 2013,

Nop-cash trapsactions—

a) The company has noi entered-into any non-cash fransactions with directors or persons
connected with him.
by Owur comments on compliance with the provisions of section 152 of Companies Act,

2013 are nat attracted.

Registration with I -

a) Company is not required to be registered under section 45-[A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act. 1934 and henee, the registration has nol been obtained.

b} Company has not conducted any non-banking financial or housing finance activity
without a valid certificate of registration from RBL

¢) Company is nol 4 core investment company (CIC) and hence our comme
continuous fulfilment of ¢riteria of CIC 5 not reguired,

d) The group do not have one or more CIC as pan of the group.
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17. Cashl.osses —
The company hasincurred cash lossol” Rs, 46,658,419~ dunng the linancial vear and

Rs.19,57,178/-in the preceding financial year.

18, Resignafion of statutory auditor -
There has been no resignatien of the statwtory suditors during the year hence it s not

necesgary 1o consider the issues, objections or concems raised by the outgoing auditor.

18, Material unceriainiy -

In our opinion, no maleriz! uncertzinty exists as on the date of audit report reganding
capahbility of the company in meeting its liabilities existing on the date of balance sheet as
and when they fall due within a period of one year {rom the balance sheet date, The
ppinion is based on the financial ratios, egeing, and expected dotes of relisation ef
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
financial statements, and our knowledge of the Board of Directors’ and manngement’s

plans.

n, jects -
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 18 not applicable 1w the company.

21. Qualifications in the consolidated financial statements —

The Company does notprepare consolidated financial statemers as it dees not have any
subsidiaries, joint ventures & associates & hence our remarks on the same wre nol
applicable,

The ressons for any of our unjfavourable or qualified reporisremark, if any, are mentioned in

the relevant point ifself

For MAPS & Company

Membership No. 106983
UDIN: 23106993 G YRPHI29T

Place: - Pune
Date: - 27" April 2023
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ANNEXURE 2
ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

of Even Date on the standalone Ind AS Financial Statemenis of

WHITEHALL COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2003 (“the Act”)

We have andited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Whitghall Commercial

Company Limitedas of March 31, 2023 in conjurction with our awdit of the smandaloneind AS

financial stutements of the Company For (the vesr ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management 15 responsible for establishing and mantining internal financial
contrals based on the internal contral over financial reporting critecia established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Instinute of Chactered
Accountants of Ingia. These responsibilities include the design. implementation and mumnicnance
of adequate internal financial controds that were operating effectively for ensuring the orcerly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s poficies, the safeguarding of s
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds asd éreces, the acouracy ard completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financia] information, as required undar

the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibiliny
Owr responsibility s to express an opinien on the Company's internal financial conirals over

financial reporting baséd on cur sudit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Contrels Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Nete™) and

the Standards on Auditing, 1ssued by 1CAL and deemed to be preseribed under section 143510} of
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the CGMFHHiH Act. 2003, {0 the extent applicable to-an audit of Inteeral inancial controls, both
applicable 1o an awdit of Internal Financial Controls and, both Issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the sudit to obtain reasonable assurance abour whether
adequite internal financial contrals over financial reporting was established and maimmined and if

such cantrols operated effectively in all material respecis:

Our audit invoives performing procedures to obisin asdit evidence about the adeguacy of the

internal fnoncizl controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectivensss.

Our audit of internal financial controls over fimancial reporting included obtaming an
undersianding of internal financial controls over Mnancial reporting #ssessing the risk that a
material weakness exists. and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the asscssed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's

Judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the stendalone Ind AS

financaal statemnenis. whether due o fraud ar error,

We belicve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriste 10 provide a

basis for our awdit opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls svstem aver Pnancial

reporting.

Moeaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financhal Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed o provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of (nd AS
financial statements for extémal purposes in accordance with generally accepted aceounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain o the maintenance of reconds that, in reasonable detail, sccurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the essets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance thal transactions are recorded as necessary 1o permit prepartion of Ind

ASfinancial statements in accordance with generally accepled accounting principles, and tha

receipis and expenditures of the company are being made only in sceondance with authorisafions
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prevention or timely detection of unsuthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s

assels that could have a material effect on the Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Interngl Finuneial Controls over Financizl Keporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, (ncluding
the possibility of collusion or improper management averride of controls, material missiatements
due toerror or fraud may pocur and not be detected. Also, projections of any ovaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporiing w fUture perlods are subject o the nisk that the
internal financial contral over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in

conditions. or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, vn adequate ntemal financial controls
system over linencial reporting and such Internal financial conirols over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2023 based on the interna! control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential compoenents of intemal contral stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Finaneial Contrels over Financial Repewting izsued by

the Tnstituie of Charmered Accountants of Tndid,

For MAPS & Company
Chartered ountants
Registraghgn Mo d 18Y13W

CAP ant Kullezrni
Partner

Membership No. 106982
UIMM: 23106883 BGYBPH3297

Place: - Fune
Date: -27" Aprii 2023
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WHITEHALL COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED
Statement of Profif and Loss for the vear ended 31 March 2023

AN Amcunts in TNR Lakhs unless otherwise stated )

Partiomlor Motrs 31 Muorch 302X X1 March 2022
lﬂrmm from operations 14 24.3%
b Incomes 13 1.0
Tatal Incoms 25,49
EXPENSES
Furchass of sock-in-rade I 2201 -
Empkives bensdits expense 17 13y 124
Finamce costs 18 .54 I 14
Diepreciation and amortisation expeanse 2 =
Ohher expemses 14 835 .17
Tt l expsnses 4104 1857
Profing Loss) before exceprioeal itenss and tay (16feh ) {19.57)
ignal fems . My ) .
ProfiviLoss | afier excepiianal jiems ancl beffore fax (it {19.57)
Tax Expenses
1] Currens tux . .
iy Deferrad las 1300} {7.30}
Profey| Lias) for the paricd from continming operationg {43.65) {1127}
Profis Loss) for the yeir - .
Oither eomprehensive megms
Imcnang fan rsimting to thess items
Chher compeehensi ve incoms for the vear, net of tax . .
Td.llm-E'rinruln hE-nmn for the year ﬂ}ﬂ [12_FT)
Eammyg per Equily Share: Face valug B3, 10 gach (Rs. 1400
i} Basic (in H8.) [17.53) 4.53)
i43 Do latesd {in Bs) [17.4%) [4.93)
Weighted svernge mirmher of Bquity Shares: Face value Rs. 1 h=ach (K5 10)
i} Basie (I Mos) 2.44,10x] 2,450
i3 Diluted {in Moo 2,490 245 {00
Signilicant docounting Policees |
l'he:m:mpﬂlum@ rciles s A iniegral pact ol Nnancial slemenis -4

b Peb—

For and s behalf of the Board of Drecinrs
Whitehall Commerciol Compamy Limitcd

L
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Rakdt P. Skah
Director Dlirector

Membership No. 106553 DI 00217271 DI - (7945594
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Shrnt 5. Kulksrnl P :
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WHITEHALL COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED
Stutemeni of Cash Flows for the vear ended 21 March 2023
(All Amounts in IMB Lokhs unless atherwase sated)

Y ear ended Y ear ended
ol 31 Mareh 2023 | 31 March 2022
Cash firw from operaring artivitses
Fenfit Befare licome 1ax [ L= {L8ET)
Aadjustents (o
Finmm:g costs .54 1011
Enlerest iscinme C1o -
sz o gendee of dnvestiinen] .25
Sundry balanoe w/'odd i1h :
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I pemase Dhcaease) i oradde: padinb b B L) {1z
Imcrensodocreass] in privissons 1 | [1r44])
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VWHITEHALL COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED
(AT Avmounts in INK Lakhs unless otherwise slubed)

B OTHER EQUITY

SPE—

Beserve aud | [femis of Other
Surplus Comperhensive
Particular Inewme Total Equity
Eetgined Chther items af
o Earnimps LN
Balanee as at 1st April 2022 (I TE) - (106,71}
Peafin Tor the vear {43657 - (43 05}
Cibier comperhensive income’ (Losses) - -
Total ¢ onpperhensive incanme {150:.23) {133 5)
Deiwbend - - -
Trarsfer to pegarve - - -
Haliunce as a8 31at Mareh 2023 {15035} - (151.35)
Balance ns ar 160 April 2821 (o - {0 44)
Profit for the year {12.27) - il El?jl
Other comperhensive income! {Logses) - - -
Totzl gumpﬂ'h:uﬂi?r incime I:]Dfr.'."]]' - 1_“]'!5.1 L
Dividend - = =
Transfer io reserve - - -
Balance ns at 315t March 222 {10671} - (106,71}

MNaiure and Purpose of reserve

a) Betained earmings

Thig resorve represent undistributed aecumulated esmings of the Company as on the balanoe sheet Eate
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WHITEHALL COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED
(CIN-L51900MH 1985PLCO3566Y9)
Notes to the financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Whitehall Commercial Company Limited {the Company] veas incorporated on 19" March 1985,
The Company is engaged in the business of trading of chemical fertilizers. The Company has its
registered office at Flat No, 0-402, 4th Floor, Plot No. 389, Palm Ratan House, Sankara Martam
Road, Kmgs Circle, Matunga, MUMBAIL - 400019,

Note 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policics adopted in the preparation of these
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

{a) Basis of Preparation :-

The Standalone financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") notified under the companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rule, 2015 notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013("the Act™), as amended

thereafier and other relevant provision of the act.

The Standalone financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the
historical cost convention, except for the following assets and lahilities which bave been measured

at fair value;

# Derivative financial instruments;
¢ Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy on
Fmancial instroment)

The Standalone financial statements are presenied in Indian Rupees (“INR™), which is also
company’'s functional curnency.

Significant accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements

The preparation of the Standalone financial statements requires management (o make estimites
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assels and liabilities, and
the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of assets or labilities efTected in fure periods.

(b) Estimates and assumptions

The key assumplions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment o ihe carry ing amount
of assets and lahilities within the next financial vear, are described below. The Compsiny has based
its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the Standalone financial statements
were prepared. Existing circumstances and assuomptions about futuge develgpments, however, may




WHITEHALL COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED
(CIN-LS1900MH 1985PLCD3566Y9)
Notes to the financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

change due o market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company,
Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they oceur

{¢}) Fair value measarement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial linhilities recorded in the Balance Sheet
cannot be measured based on guoted prices in active markets, thedr Bir value i3 measured using
valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash flow (“DCF™) model. The inputs o these
models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree
of judgement is required in establishing their fair values. Judgements include consideration of
mputs such as lquidity risk, eredit risk and volatility, Changes in azsumptions about these factors
could affect the reported fair values of financial imstruments.

(d) Hevenue Recognition

Ind AS 115 specifies a uniform, five-siep model for revenue recognition, which is generally to be
applied 1w all contracis with customers.

& Sale of Gondds:

The Company recognizes revenue from sale of goods measured at fair valie of the consideration
received or receivable, upon satisfaction of performance ohligatien: which iz &t a poimt in (e
when eontrol of the goeds is transferred 1o the customer generally on the delivery of the goods.

o Sule of Services:

Sale of services are recognized on satisfaction of performance oblhigation townards rendenng of

such services.
o [nterest and dividend income:

Interest Income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable and dividend income from investments in shares is recognised when the owner's right

to receive the payment is established.

(e} Property, plint and equi poent

The Company has no investment in Property, Plant and Equipment,
i) Intangible assets

The Company has no investment in intangible assets,




WHITEHALL COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED
(CIN-LS1900MHI1985PLCO35669)
Notes to the financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

{2}  Financial instroments

A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and &
financial liabality or equity instrument of another entity,

Financial assets; Mivial recognition and measirement

All financial assets are recognised initially al fair value plus, in the case of fmancial assels net
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are aftributable 1o the aequisition
of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a
time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place {regular way trades} are
recagnised on the trade date. i.e., the date that the Company commiis o purchase or sell the asset.

Subsedquent méasitrenent
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

» Debt imstruments ol smorlised cogt

+ Debn instruments ai fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT)

» Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)
» Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT)

Equity imvestmenis

All equity investments m scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instrumenis which
are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
cambination o which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at FVPL. For all other equity
mstruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present m other comprehensive
income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument
by-instrument basts. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irevocable. If the
Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FYOCL then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCL These is no recycling of the amounts
from OC] to the Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment, However, the Company
may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity, Equity instruments included within the
FVPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.




WHITEHALL COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED
(CIN-LS190MMH 1985PLCO35669)
Notes to the financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Imaperireent of finencial assers

The Company recognizes loss allowance using the expected eredit loss (ECL) model for the
fnancial assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade
receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal 1o lifetime
ECL. For all financial assets with contractual cash flows other than wade receivable, ECLs are
measured af an amount cqual to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a sipnilicant increase in
credit risk from initial recopmition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL, The ampunt
of ECLa (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount
that is required to be recognised as an impairment gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognized when;

* The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

= The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without matersal delay o a third party under a
*pass-through’ arrangement and cither (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. When the Company has
transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates it and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the dsks and rewands of the asset,
nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to revognize the transferred asset to
the extent of the Company continuing involvement., In that case, the Company also recognizes an
associated linhility. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Fimanetal liakilines

Financial Liabilities are classified and measored at anortized cost or FVPL. A finaneial liability is
classified as at FYPL if it is classified as held for treding, o it 15 a derdvative or it is designated as
such on initial recopnition. Financial labilifies at FVPL are measured at fair value and net grins
and losses, including amy interest expense, are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Other
financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in Statement of
Profit and Loss, Any gain or loss on derccognition 15 also recopnized in $tatement of Profit and
Loss.




WHITEHALL COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED
(CIN-L51900MH I985PLC035669)
Notes to the financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Derecogmiion

A financial liability is derccognized when the obligation under the liability is dischanged or
eancelled or expires. When an existing financial hability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substanfally different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carryving amounts is
recopnised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsediing

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented m the Balance
Sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable rght o set off the
amounts and it intends either to seftle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and seitle the

Tiability simulianeously,

{h) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. 1f any indication exists, or when anmual impairment testing for an asset s required, the
Company estimates the assets’ recoverable amount. The recoverable amount 15 determined for an
individual assel unless the asset does not generate cashflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or Company of assets. For assets excluding poodwill, an assessment is made at
each reporting date to determine whether there 15 an indication that previously recognised
tmpaimeent loss oo longer exist or has decreased. I such indication exists, the Company estimates
the assets” or CGU%s recovernble amount. A previeusly recognised impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the assumptions wsed to determine the assets’ recoverable
amount, since the last impadrment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited 2o that the carrymng
amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of deprociation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the
assel in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

(i) Provisions

Pravisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructrve), asa
result of a past event, it is probable that an cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to setile the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the stytement of profit and loss net
of any reimbursements




WHITEHALL COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED
(CIN-L51900MH1985PLC035669)
Notes to the financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

If the effect of time value of money 15 material . provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the nsks specific w the lishility. When discounting 15 used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as 8 finonce cost. Provisions
are reviewed at each balance sheet date and arc adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

iy Employee benefit obligations

Employee benefits like provident fund, ESI, Gratity & Bonus are not applicable to the company
and hence no provision has been made in the sccounts. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting period.

(k1 ©Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
depasits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an msignificant risk
of chanpes 1 value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposils, as defined above,

i Income taxes

Current income tax assets and lisbilities are measured at the amounls expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961,

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit and loss is recognized ouside profit
and loss {either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Curment tax items are recognized in
commelation o the underdying tramsaction cither in OCI or dircetly in equity. Managemcnt
periodically evaluates positions taken i the tax retumns with respect 10 situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate,

Deferred income tax is provided using the hability method on temporary differences between the
tax bases of assets and liahilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recopnized for all taxable temporary differences except when the
deferred tax lability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or Habality in a
teansaction that is not a business combination and at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or boss; or in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investment in subsidiaries, associates and interestz in joint ventures, when the




WHITEHALL COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED
(CIN-L51900MH1985PLCO35669)

Deferred tax nssets on deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses are recognized fo the extent that there 15 reasonably certainty that taxable
profits will be available against which the deductible tempornary differences and the carry forwacd
of unused tax credits and fax losses can be utilized, except when the deferred tax asset relating to
the deductible temporary difference anses from the imbial recognition of an asset or hability in a
transaction that is not & business combmation and at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at cach reporting period and is reduced o
the exient that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be avalable to allow all
or part of the deferred tax asset to be wtilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at
each reporting date and arc recognized to the extent that it has become reasonably certain that
future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferved tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the asset or liability is setiled based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax relating 4o items recognized cutside prefit
and loss is recognized cutside profit and lass (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).
Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation o the underlying transaction either in OCI or

directly in equity.
im} Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calonlated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable
to the equity shareholders by the weighted average munber of equity shares outstanding during the
period. For the purposes of calculating diluted carnings per share, the net profit for the period
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

(np Significant events

1. During the year company started its operations of trading of agro-based chemicals and
completed first sale during the month of July 2022

2. Suspension in wading of equity shares of the company was revoked w.ef. I802/2023.

3. During the vear company waived off cumulated dividend on preference shares of Deepak
Agro Solutions Limited from the date of issue of shares till 3rd November, 201E.
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WHITEHALL COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED

(AN Amounlz in ITNE Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Mode T Share capltal
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Cormpany after distributon of &1l preferemtia] amnowens, in proportion o ther sharchalding. - :‘_

s et whare. Esh holdsr of Equiny Slares s entitded oo vors s
privval of the =harchulders in cmsuing Al
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WHITEHALL COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED

{All Amounts in INR. Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note : Non-Current Liabilties Berrowings

Farticular

A=t March 2023

Xlst March 2022

Loan from related party - 33.10
Loan from olhers [0, £ 10600
Total 1M, 1 13310

Mode 10: Oiher Mnanclal liabilities

PFarticular 31st March 2023  |31st March 2022
[C3thers Tnierest Payahle 8457 Bd. 42
Bo.57 B443

Toial

Mate 11: Trmle payable current

Particular 2 Mapch 2023 31 Maveh 2022
Drpe 10 Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises 0,43 043
Drze do Chhers (.29 .10
Tuotwl 072 054
Dues to Micro, small & modinm enterprises

Papticilay 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Principal amcunt due at year end .43 .43
Interest provided but not paad at year end on above -
Interest due on principal amount already paid

Delayed Principal amount paid during the year =
Interest paid on delaved poncipal peyvment - -
Mote 12 : Other Current Liabilities

Particular 31 Mareh 2023 31 Mareh 2022
Statutory lex pavobles 0.12 0,24
b 0,12 0126
—

Mole 13: Provisioms

Particnlar 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Outstanding Lisbilites .15 .
Total 0,15 -

1a




WHITEHALL COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED
(A0l Arnoumds in INR Lokhs unless odhiemwise staded )

Aging of Traie payahle curvent outstamiding as 1 3154 March 2023 is s follow:

Traistsnding for the Tellowing period frani (B dise daie
o paymeni
Pardeular Le=s than 1 12 z3 More than
; Total
year YisArs Voars 3 Woars
Trade perables
MEMET .41 = = . a3
{nhers 0.9 - - - {19
Digpuried cues - BMAEWME* - = B . i
Daspariod duwme- Othir - - - a .
Aging of Trade payable cerreot cutstaniding s at 31st March 2022 is ns foflow:
hiitainmillng Tor the Fallewlng peried from the dac dile
ol paymies
Prriienler Lows than 1 12 2.3 Morethan |
year Years Yiars A Wears
Trak: pyphles
MEME®* 43 - - . [N
DOithvers (18 [ - = . o
Disguited dies - MEME® . 2 = : -
Dispuied dues - Tiher - - =
“MASME a5 perthe Micen, smoll ond Medium Enlerpmses IJEI-'HI:!}M'III'II At 21HMs,
FR= e
(S %)
ot gt o |.I
S J
- :'__x .-"'
ot T 5
"h;__' _|'.'::- =

17



WHITEHALL COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITEI

(Al Amounis e INE Lakhe umless orberwise stamed)

gt 14 1 Hewenue Fmas e o iEsss

Pariiealar it Aok 2020 [8at March 2022

Gale ol goods 2478 2

I'oial 4.3 -

SMofr |5 - [DWher Inesane

Papileular st March 3823 [Jis Manch 2022 |

Ivteresi Incoame 107 -
EAiz -

Tavinl

Mote 16 ¢ Porchnces

Farticulnr Hlat Mareh 2028|3141 Mareh 1122

Purchase of goods [hiel ol myes) 4,11 -

Toesl a1 =
e

Maie 17: Emplayec benelit evpenses

Particular 31wt Wlarchs 023|318t Alarch 2022

Selaiy & A Bwancs 324 134

Total R Jid
— - — =

Hosr 18: Finance cosl

Famlicular st March 2033|3051 March 2022
Tevierest and Frenes: cherpes on finaacia] Teabiies v a1 G value 04 |1 Fh
thring prodil e iedh

Tatal =34 1014
Note 19 (Hher ecponses
[Particalar 315t Mareh 2028|315 Vsrch 3022
Listing Fees .00 L4
Hemd Pend 1.3 -
Legal and Prafisisnnl Fres 1.59 .35
Prasers o Anditon® 047 047
BT s 034 .58
Los on Ealo of Prefirenoe Shans 05 -
Fublization espenses a4 .28
SDD Saltean Licenss Fees (L8] -
Tekephome Exponses (18511 -
Wzhsite Remewal Chirpes 03 ans
Filing lees [0 0
Wiebsite Uperedation Charpee L4 i
Fales amil mues LA 1] om
Cenerad Expeanses 0 0|
Covpyunce expnacs iz -
Frinting and Statiomen: 04z -
Bepistmiion & Sty Duly 041 -

A5 &7

Total

*Paymenl 1o Audilors’

Partioala A&t March 2023
Statutnry Audit Fee 04T
L .47

48
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WHITEHALL COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED
(Al Amounts in INR Lokls unless otherwise stated)

Mte 218 Finameial rlsk monngenweni

T Con pay 12 exposed prmanly 10 luctumions 0 Saeign cumrency cuchange rabes, crocha, ligquediny and isncresn e risks, which
may adversely impact the fals value of is finoncial insmamends. The Compemy hos a dsk masagensesd policy which coves ke
assarcfuted with ibe financial asseis and linbilifies. The risk manageinend policy i approsed by the Brand of Directers. The focus of
fhe munagement @ te assess the anpredicmbelity of the financinl enviremment and 1w mitgate poteial advose effess on e
finaiial performance of the Company,

Muorket risk
Mlarket risk i ihve risk that the B value or feare casli Bows ol & fraiscinl instrament will fluctuabe becauss of chasges in mirke
prices, Sach changes in the valaes of (saecial instraments mi resull from changes in e foreign curreney exchange mies, inensst

putes, credit, liquidity end otber market changes,

a) Fareign currency exchange rate risk

The fluctuatien in foreign cumenay exchanpe rates may have podential npact on the etatement of profit and loes and other
comprehensive ineome and equity, where any ransaction neferences: more tan oae currency of whete asscis ¢ liabilities are
denognimnsed in @ currency ather than the Funetional eumenes al’ the Coenpany,

fmiring the vear, the Company is not expesed nany fioreign cumessy exchanges race risk.

b} Interest rote rizk
Thee Compeny's investments are primoridy in (xed me e berng mvesiments: Hence, the Company is nod sipnificantdy
exposed b0 inderest Tate riske

Credit risk

Credit risk i the risk of financse] loss arisng fom eounierparty fioilure & repay or semace debd accanding o the contractual lenms
ar ahlizatsons, Credit nsk easompasses of toth, the direct risk of default ond the risk of deterioration of creditworibiness as well as
copcemiration of risks. Credil nsk 8 eontrodled by anabsing credit imits and creditworthivess of cussomers on @ continuous basis
i whom the credit has heen grambed ofter obinning mecezsary approvals for cnedic

Financial isetrupments tht sre subjest o comeenrations of credit risk principally consst of frmde recelvables, Joans, invesiments,
derivative fnancial instrments, cask and cash equivalents, baonk deposats and ather Frnanes G

The carmving amoumnt of finansial asseis amd contract assels represents the maximum credit exposure. Thi THax i Copsens o
credit misk weas Bk 17 enore and B 101 crare s a2 March 31, 2027 and 3022, respectively, being the total of the cirmg amount
af halances with banks, bank deposis, ivesiments excluding eguity and preference snvestisents, trade recsvable, bans contrast
asseis and athor fennnesal sasets.

Mmool 1he Finamcial instrumsents of the Cormpany result i material concendratson of enedil risk

Liguielity risk

Ligguichity risk nefors oo the risk thai the Company canmat meo its fimasaial ehlrgations. The objective of qediy def masagencn
is b mmintan sofficsnt Fguidicy and nssre that funds are available far ose o8 per eguirements, The Compasy consisely
generatad sufficient cash flows fiom operations s meet its financial obligaticnsincluding leass labilites as and when they fali dug,

a0 S



WHITEHALL COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED
(Al Amounts i IMNE Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Expositre to lguidiiy risk

The Filleaing nre the remaiming contractual moiurizies of fAnencial labibioes st the reponang date. The amounts are gross and

21

| ReLicsy
Careylmg | Payeble niililng  Between Bedween Briwee Marc (han
W Mrel 0 Amouni 1 viear Band 5 years | 1 amil 5 vears | 2 omd 5 vears 5 years
Map-derlvatives finamcial
linlilities
Bormowings T 1{H1, - -
Trade payables 0,53 .53 . -
Interest accrued #4432 - e ah - -
Taotal nan-iberivative Hakilighs 14496 0.53 ]I-l.-l:i| - - -
Cormying  |Payable within Tbci ween Eelwern Between Mure tham
it A i I vear 1 and 5 years | §and & vears | 1 and & yoary 5 years
Mom=glerivalives
Bormswings [RERLH 133,10
Trade payahles 0,53 053 - - =
Interesi scerued B43 | 443 e 2 =
Total non-derivative linbilities 218.06] o.53] 217.83 N i
y .-"_ -] .:'\-\.x

e Y
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